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Reynolds Ward, first called lLower New Ward, was the fifth to be laid
in Gen. James Edward Oglethorpe's original city plan. On the N, E. portiofi~y
of Trust Lot "T", overlooking Reynolds Square and directly abutting the ba
wall of an adjacent hotel, the Oliver Sturges House stands today as the
remaining unit of a pair of "mirror" townhouses built ca. 1812-1813 by two &
men...0liver Sturges and Benjamin Burroughs, brothers-in-law and partners in
& well-known Savannah merchantile firm.

The earliest view of this building is depicted by Firmin Cerveau, detail
painter and watercolorist in 1837; the painting now hangs in the Georgia
Historical Society. The building as it appears in that painting is a two-
story brick dwelling over a % basement with gable roof. There are two
arched dormer windows on the rear roof of each unit of the double pair
of houses; the chimneys are connected by brick parapets. A two story octagonsa
bay projects from the rear of each unit and construction details indicate that
these bays were added after completion of the original structure.

Today 27 Abercorn reflects a ca. 1850-1860 third story addition which
may have been added to this unit of the pair dnly. (See 1871 Map of Savannsh
located at Historic Savannah Foundation.)

The companion unit was demolished for a hotel between 1911 and 1916,

I. Exterior: A, Main or East Facade. This three story brick structure, facing
Reynolds Square, rises from a stuccoed # basement made of ballast stone and
brick. Marble steps rise up to the level of a stuccoed and painted string-

course between the basement and first floor. One fluted pilaster stands as the

remaining support of a wooden portico that was removed by Historic Savannah
Foundation iﬁii?ﬁéféhd stored inside the house...this portico being unsafe
structurally. The fanlight above the 6 paneled door is framed in & brown-
stone architrave and flanked on wither side by sidelights. Directly above the
door,on the second floor level,is a Palladian window framed by a brownstone
architrave similar to the front door architrave. The parlor and second floor
windows have 9/9 lights. The third story 6/6. All windows have brownstone
lintels and sills. . B. West Facade: The rear octagonal bay is capped with what
Frederick Doveton Nichols describes as a "Fine transitional type of brick
cornice with dentils." ¢, South Facade. Adjoins hotel wall. On the rear
portion of the lot is a brick and stucco carriage house. This was & retail
shop in recent years. Portions of a garden wall are imbedded in the north
facade of the hotel wall.

II. Interior. The entrance hall is separated from the stair hall by a columman
screen (an arch dupported on paneled pilasters.) The stair to the second floon
has rectangular balusters and paneled returns. To the right of the entrance
hall is a drawing room with a fine wood mantelpiece with peneled pilasters, a
delicate cornice with dentils, and a frieze with three wooden sunbursts. This
room is separated from another .on direct atis with it by an opening framed wit
classical columns and a fanlight with paneled folding doors. A similar divisi

occurs between this second parlor and the octagonal addition. Each room has o

chair rail and wainscoting, the octagonal room having a more refined chair rai
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of cable and reeded moulding and paneled wainscoting. The addition has a plaﬁter

acanthus leaf ceiling moulding.

The second floor stairhall is divided by an arch supported on engaged coﬁumns.

The hall ends in a palladian window described above. Frederick Doveton Nichol
writes that the Oliver Sturges house "represents the typicel eerly 19th C.

|row house characteristic of all the colonies."
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I. 1733-1812: Christ Church Vestry, John Wesley & Kng,

Lot "T", Southwest trust lot of Reynolds Ward was th et aside
by the Trustees of the Colony of Georgia for the home of the minister at
Savannah. A house on this site shows in the 1733 Peter Gordon Map. During
the years 1736 and 1737 John Wesley, minister of the Church of England and
later the founder of Methodism lived here. In 1969 the Methodists and the
Citizens of Savannah erected a statur of John Wesley in the center of
Reynolds Square and renovated the square at that time.

II. 1812-1911: Oliver Sturges, Benjamin Burroughs.

Reynolds Square was the center of Colonial Government with the Mouse
of Assembly standing on the Southeast trust lot. It was in this building
and square that the first and second readings on the Declaration of
Independence in Savannah took place.

The Northwest trust Lot "R" was the site of the public school in 1756.
About 1789 a private residence was built for James HaYersham, Jr. It later
became the Planter's Bank, the square then being known as "Bank Square."
The house still stands today together with the Sturges House the only two
remaining houses of this fashionable residential district.

The filature (house for reeling silk) was on Trust Lot "S" (North
eastern one) until it burned in 1840. C(assel Row, a series of two story briick
houses, was built on the lot after that. This row was demolished to make
way for the building now occupied by the U, S. Army Bngineers. The filature
was used for public meetings, balls, and for a time by city government until
the City Exchange was erected.

Oliver Sturges and his partner Benjamin Burroughs purchased Trust Lot
"I" from Christ Church Vestry in 1812. The next year together they constructed
a fine pair of Georgian townhouses overlooking the square. Burroughs and
Sturges were associate cotton merchants. To quote the Historic Savannah
Survey, "It was from the parlor room of the Sturges House that plans were mafie
for the crossing of the Atlantic by the S, S. Savannah." Qliver Sturges was
a substantial financial participant in this first transAtlantic steamship
voyage venture in 1819,

Mr. William Harden, born in 1835 wrote in his memoirs that men of wvealth,
planters and bankers, prominent citizens of Savannah lived around Reynolds
Square. Mr. William P. Hunter lived many years in the Sturges House, Mr.
Hunter was a distinguished Savannah Banker, and next to him was Mr. Joseph
Hallett Burroughs whose wife was the daughter of the Hon. John Macpherson
Berrien, Attorney General of the United States, 1829-1831,

The Burroughs family maintained their half of the pair until 1911 when

it was s0ld and subsequently torn down for a hotel. The Sturges House was

& rooming house at that time. Cont,
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Annual Conference held in Savannah in October, 1968.

In 1964 Historic Savannah Foundation, Inc., rescued the Sturges House
from imminent demolition. The site of this house and lot is within the
Savannah Historic District, a Registered National Historic Landmark, so
designated by the Department of the Interior through the National Park Service)

Historic Savannah Foundation has placed legal protective covenants on
the Sturges House regarding its future sale and appropriate restoration.

These will insure the preservation of the integrity of the building.

The building has been open to the public during Georgia Day Celebrations

for tours and was on tour for the National Trust for Historic Preservation
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